	AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION/MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT
	1. CONTRACT ID CODE
	PAGE 0 F
	OF PAGES

	
	
	   1
	 6

	2.  AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION NO.
	3.  EFFECTIVE DATE
	4. REQUISITION/PURCHASE REQ. NO. 
	5.  PROJECT NO. (if applicable)

	Amendment 1   
	9/17/04
	
	

	6.  ISSUED BY                                              CODE                                                  
	
	7.  ADMINISTERED BY (if other than item 6)   CODE                                
	

	Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration

Division of Contracts Management, OPS

5600 Fishers Lane, Parklawn Building, Room 13C‑06

Rockville, MD 20857

	Same as Item 6

	8.  NAME AND ADDRESS OF CONTRACTOR   (No., street, county, State and ZIP Code)
	()
	9A. AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION NO.

	TO ALL OFFERORS

	X
	283-04-0092

	
	
	9B. DATED    (SEE ITEM 11)

	
	
	8/27/04

	
	
	10A. MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT/ORDER NO.

	
	
	

	
	
	10B. DATE   (SEE ITEM 13)

	CODE
	FACILITY CODE
	
	


11.  THIS ITEM ONLY APPLIES TO AMENDMENTS OF SOLICITATIONS


 The above numbered solicitation is amended as set forth in item 14. The hour and date specified for receipt of Offers  is extended,  is not extended.
Offers must acknowledge receipt of this amendment prior to the hour and date specified in the solicitation or as amended, by one of the following methods: (a) by completing items 8 and 15, and returning    1    copies of the amendment, (b) by acknowledging receipt of this amendment on each copy of the offer submitted; or

(c) by separate letter or telegram which includes a reference to the solicitation and amendment numbers.  FAILURE OF YOUR ACKNOWLEDGMENT TO BE RECEIVED AT THE PLACE DESIGNATED FOR THE RECEIPT OF OFFERS PRIOR TO THE HOUR AND DATE SPECIFIED MAY RESULT IN REJECTION OF YOUR OFFER.  If by virtue of this amendment you desire to change an offer already submitted, such change may be made by telegram or letter, provided each telegram or letter makes reference to the solicitation and this amendment, and is received prior to the opening hour and date specified.

12. ACCOUNTING AND APPROPRIATION DATA 

13. THIS ITEM APPLIES ONLY TO MODIFICATIONS OF CONTRACTS/ORDERS

IT MODIFIES THE CONTRACT/ORDER NO. AS DESCRIBED IN ITEM 14.

	()
	A.  THIS CHANGE ORDER IS ISSUED PURSUANT TO:  (Specify authority) THE CHANGES SET FORTH IN ITEM 14 ARE MADE IN THE CONTRACT ORDER NO. IN ITEM 10A.

	
	

	
	B.  THE ABOVE NUMBERED CONTRACT/ORDER IS MODIFIED TO REFLECT THE ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGES (such as changes in paying office, appropriation, date, etc.)  SET FORTH IN ITEM 14, PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF FAR 43.103(B).

	
	C.  THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT IS ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO AUTHORITY OF:

	
	D.  OTHER  (Specify type of modification and authority) 


E.    IMPORTANT:   Contractor   is not,   is required to sign this document and return _____ copies to the issuing office.

14.  DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION (Organized by UCF section heading, including solicitation/contract subject matter where feasible.)
The purpose of this Amendment is to answer questions raised by prospective offerors.  See Pages 2 through 6 and Enclosure (1).

	15A.  NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNER (Type or print)

	16A. NAME AND TITLE OF CONTRACTING OFFICER (Type or print)


	
	MICHELLE A. RINGO, CONTRACTING OFFICER


	15B.  CONTRACTOR/OFFEROR

	15C. DATE SIGNED
	16B. UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
	16C. DATE SIGNED SIGNED


	______________________________________________________________
	
	_____________________________________
	


       (Signature of person authorized to sign)                                                               (Signature of Contracting Officer)                

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

NSN 7540-01-152-8070

                                                                              STANDARD FORM 30 (REV. 10-83)

PREVIOUS EDITION UNUSABLE

                                                                              Prescribed by GSA

 SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1RFP NO. 283-04-0092

AMENDMENT NO. 1                                                                                                                          PAGE 2 OF 6  
 SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1Following are questions raised by potential offerors and the Government response for each.

QUESTION #1:  The cover letter indicates an anticipated performance period for this contract from November 29, 2004 through November 28, 2005.  Task 7 (Transfer of Activities) indicates that the current contractor is anticipated to end on November 28, 2004.  If necessary, does SAMHSA anticipate extending the current contract to allow for a transition period to a new contractor?

ANSWER #1:  Offerors should plan on a 3-week transition period, which should be included in your proposed budget.

QUESTION #2:  Although Section L.G., Reference Materials, indicates that no materials are available, it would be helpful to potential bidders to have access to examples of the types of analyses and reports required under Task 2 that have been completed by the current contractor.  Would SAMHSA provide access to one or two examples of each type of report (i.e., responses to ad hoc requests; short term analytic requests/reports; and long term analyses/reports) prepared under the current contract?

ANSWER #2:  Material produced by the National Analytic Center (NAC) is posted at the OAS website: http://oas.samhsa.gov/.  The short reports produced under the NAC can be found at: http://oas.samhsa.gov/facts.cfm. 

         An example of an article produced under the NAC is:  Gfroerer, J., Pemberton, M., & Penne, M. (2003). Substance Abuse Treatment Need Among Older Adults in 2020: The Impact of the Aging Baby-Boom Cohort. Drug and Alcohol Dependence.

An example of an OAS monograph available from the OAS website is:  Korper, S. P., & Council, C. L. (Eds.). (2002). Substance Use by Older Adults: Estimates of Future Impact on the Treatment System. 

Ad hoc analyses include data tables, graphs, or consultation on analysis issues.  
QUESTION #3:  (a) What files are currently in the holdings of the OAS Analytic Data Library?  

(b) Task 3(b) call[s] for the expansion of the Library "of up to 50 analytic files" per year.  Would these additional files include data gathered by agencies/groups other than OAS/SAMHSA such as the examples offered under Task 3(a)?

ANSWER #3:  (a) The Analytic Data Library currently has analytic files, codebooks, and documentation for the major OAS databases (i.e., the NSDUH, DASIS, and DAWN).  In addition, the Library has the types of files listed as examples in the RFP.  (b) Some may be.

QUESTION #4:  (a) We have reviewed the OAS web site, which lists a large number of reports of varying length and complexity based on the NSDUH.  It would be helpful to know which types of reports were developed under the NAC and which ones were prepared under other contracts.  (b) Does OAS/SAMHSA anticipate situations where reports are prepared collaboratively under more than one contract?   

ANSWER #4:  (a) See Answer #2.  (b) No.

QUESTION #5:  Section C. General Requirements of the Statement of Work (SOW) indicates that this contract would have a base period of three (3) years and two (2) option years.  The transmittal letter indicates a base period of 12 months plus option periods.  Please clarify the anticipated period of performance?

ANSWER #5:  The SOW is incorrect.  The contract will be for a 12-month base period with four 12-month options.  

QUESTION #6:  Task 4(d) requires the successful bidder to rapidly produce 3.25" diskettes and compact discs.  It would be helpful for budgeting, particularly if this is a high volume activity, for bidders to have guidance on the anticipated number of requests and the typical size of these requests.
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ANSWER #6:  For budgeting purposes, the number of requests is estimated at approximately four (4) dozen annually.

QUESTION #7:  Under Task 4, Electronic Media, the rapid reproduction of computer diskettes and discs is noted.  Will graphic design services be required to create covers?  

ANSWER #7:  No.

QUESTION #8:  Task 5 is unclear in the number of meetings and duration of meetings that will be required each year.  It references "three (3) workshops, conferences, or meetings per year", then "three 3‑day meetings", and finally "six (6) annual events".  Please specify the number of meetings planned each year and the duration of each.

ANSWER #8:  The annual estimated number of meetings is three (3), with a duration of no more than two (2) days each, with an additional travel day.

QUESTION #9:  How many participants are anticipated for each workshop, conference, or meeting?  Will participation numbers be the same for each event?  

ANSWER #9:  20 participants.  For budgeting purposes, offerors may assume that all meetings will be of the same size.

QUESTION #10:  Approximately how many participants will be local and how many will be non‑local? 

ANSWER #10:  For budgeting purposes, assume all will be non-local.

QUESTION #11:  Will the meeting formats be plenary only or will participants break into smaller groups?  

ANSWER #11:  Both formats may be required at the Project Officer’s discretion.  For budgeting purposes, assume one with plenary only and two with plenary and participants breaking into smaller groups. 

QUESTION #12:  If meetings are held in a Government facility, will shuttle services be provided to and from the hotel to the meeting?  

ANSWER #12:  The Government shuttle service runs from the Shady Grove metro station to SAMHSA’s new Choke Cherry building in Rockville, MD.

QUESTION #13:  Are the consultants mentioned under Task 5, 2(g) and 2(h), technical writers with topic‑area expertise?   

ANSWER #13:  No

QUESTION #14:  Will there be registration fees to cover the cost of breaks?  

ANSWER #14:  No

QUESTION #15:  Under Task 6(a), graphic materials, how many colors should be estimated?  

ANSWER #15:  A maximum of four (4).

QUESTION #16:  Where do we get a copy of the SAMHSA Internet/Web Site Policy, as referenced on page 3 of the Statement of Work?

ANSWER #16:  See Enclosure (1), SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1 provided herewith.
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QUESTION #17:  Under clause H.21 in the RFP (identification credentials), there is a requirement that every employee (of the contractor) have a building pass before the employee enters duty.  This RFP clause, along with other clauses on security requirements, seem to indicate that contractor staff will be required to work on site at SAMHSA.  Since this will affect costing considerably, please indicate the number, types, and roles of staff that may be required to work on site at SAMHSA. 

ANSWER #17:  No contractor staff are anticipated to work on site at SAMHSA.  If it ever becomes necessary, then the security requirements come into effect.  The cost beyond completing the paperwork/submission for the security clearances is paid for outside the contract.  

QUESTION #18:  (a)  Under Task 2.4 of the Statement of Work, the RFP indicates that "offerors should assume 1,240 consultant hours per year to provide" statistical consultation.  Can this requirement be fulfilled by the prime or subcontractors, or should outside consultants be specifically bid for this support?  (b) Are these 1,240 hours considered part of the 18 FTEs to be provided annually or are they in addition to the 18 FTEs? 

ANSWER #18:  (a) Only outside consultants.  (b) They are in addition to the 18 FTE’s annually.

QUESTION #19:  The prime is required to provide past performance information for five completed contracts and all current contracts that are similar in nature.  The RFP also asks for "comparable information on all subcontractors" that will be performing major subcontractor efforts (i.e., over $500,000).  Will the 36 points associated with this evaluation factor be evaluated across both prime and major subcontractor(s)?

ANSWER #19:  Yes.

QUESTION #20:  The address for delivery of the proposal in the cover letter is different from the address for the Proposal Intent Response Sheet (Attachment 9).  Please confirm address for each.

ANSWER #20:  The stated address for each delivery is correct.  SAMHSA’s offices are in the process of moving to a new building on Choke Cherry Road in Rockville, to which the proposals shall be delivered.  

QUESTION #21:  Statement of Work (SOW), page 3 of 14, B. Monthly Management Meetings, states face-to-face monthly in first year with face-to-face bi-monthly thereafter.  Page 10 of 71, Section F, states that Monthly Management Meetings are due "monthly throughout contract duration."  Please clarify expectation and include number of meetings per location (government space or contractor central offices).

ANSWER #21:  The terms of the SOW are correct – monthly in first year and bi-monthly thereafter.  However, metropolitan DC area offerors should assume that all meetings will be face-to-face and held in government facilities.  Non-metropolitan DC offerors may propose alternative approaches.

QUESTION #22:  SOW, page 5 of 14, Process section and 2.2 Short Term Analytic Requests make reference to "Rapid Turnaround Requests."  Please define.

ANSWER #22:  Rapid turn around requests are defined as typically taking from 24 to 72 hours to complete.

QUESTION #23:  RFP, page 60 of 71, (3) Introduction.  For a proposal of approximately 150 pages, 2 pages seem inadequate to summarize key points.  Can the Executive Summary be longer than 2 pages?

ANSWER #23:  The executive summary instructions are guidance.  It can be longer than 2 pages, but counts against the overall 150-page limitation.

QUESTION #24:  RFP, page 56 of 71, will you accept Adobe Acrobat.pdf files for the business proposal on the CD-ROM in lieu of the Microsoft Word and Microsoft Excel formats?

ANSWER #24:  No.
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QUESTION #25:  Are there special security requirements at the SAMHSA building on Choke Cherry Road in Rockville that would prevent a staff member from hand delivering our proposal?

ANSWER #25:  The security requirements are comparable to those for the Parklawn Building. 

QUESTION #26:  RFP, page 66 of 71, 10 c.  Can a Contract Performance Report Request (Attachment 13) be sent to a reference electronically and can the reference return their completed form to the Contracting Officer via email?  If so, to what address?  

ANSWER #26:  The form can be sent to a reference electronically, but we require the original, signed hard copy from the reference.

QUESTION #27:  RFP, page 67 of 71, Small Disadvantaged Business Participation. “(NOTE:  This is a separate requirement from that for a Subcontracting Plan under P.L. 95-507.)”  Is a Subcontracting Plan required?

ANSWER #27:  Yes, if you are not a small business.

QUESTION #28:  Please confirm the total number of pages for appendices.  Is the 75-page limit for all appendices, each individual appendix, or for all appendices other than references, letters of commitment, resumes, and organizational charts?  

ANSWER #28:  For all appendices.

QUESTION #29:  Are Ad Hoc Requests referred to on page 5 of the SOW the same as the Rapid Turn-Around Requests referred to on the same page?  If these are different, please explicate.

ANSWER #29:  Rapid Turn-Around Requests are completed within 1 to 3 days, whereas Ad Hoc Requests have longer turn-around times.
QUESTION #30:  Exactly or approximately how many of each of the component analyses 2.1 - 2.4 (pages 5 and 6 of the SOW) have been assigned during the past five years?  Will SAMHSA provide a list of, and access to, all analytic publications and products from the current NAC contract?

ANSWER #30:  The following is a list of NAC products from October 1999 through Spring 2004:   

Approximately:
112 
Ad hocs

  23 
Rapid turnaround requests

  25 
Short term analyses

21 Long term analyses

QUESTION #31:  Will SAMHSA provide the current turnover plan referred to on page 14 of the SOW? 

ANSWER #31:  There is not a current turnover plan available at this time.

QUESTION #32:  Will SAMHSA provide a catalog of the names, file specifications, and access to codebooks or data dictionaries of the current holdings of the OAS Analytic Data Library?  

ANSWER #32:  These items will be provided to the successful contractor after award.

QUESTION #33:  Will SAMHSA provide a list of, and access to, all technical reports, manuals, and other documents of a technical nature produced to date under the NAC contract? 

ANSWER #33:  After contract award.
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QUESTION #34:  Evaluation factors for key personnel include "qualifications, experience, and availability of proposed personnel in fielding national data collection activities."  Please elaborate on the type and level of relevance of experience in "fielding data collection activities" to this contract.

ANSWER #34:  Offerors should propose staff that are familiar with data collection and analysis and who can be expected to fulfill the tasks listed in the SOW.

Enclosure (1)

Policy for the SAMHSA Public Presence on the World Wide Web

I. Introduction

SAMHSA recognizes that Web-based internet technology offers advantages for broadening access to Agency data and data systems, disseminating information, conducting Agency business, and improving public awareness and use of Agency services. The Agency also recognizes the potential for costs savings in the use of Web-based internet technology to perform these functions.

This document provides guidance intended to promote best practices and systematize the development and maintenance of World Wide Web (WWW or Web) pages for the presentation of SAMHSA public information. Some of these guidelines are based on those developed by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) after several years of experience and collaboration in program use of the Internet. HHS has encouraged its individual Operating Divisions to use HHS guidelines to ensure that content, organization, and presentation of information on the Department's Websites are consistent in format and of high quality.

II. Terms used in this policy (alphabetical)

A. Associate Administrator for Communications
B. Center web contacts, designated by the Center Director.
C. Contractors
D. OPS-IT, Office of Program Services - Information Technology
E. OPS-IT Director 
F. Domain Name, Second-Level: domain names ending in .gov such as girlpower.gov, soyunica.gov, drugfreeworkplace.gov.
G. Domain Name, Third-Level: domain names ending in .samhsa.gov such as cmhs.samhsa.gov, methadone.samhsa.gov, workplace.samhsa.gov.
H. Office of Communications/Office of the Administrator (OC/OA) 
I. Program Officials, PO; also Government Project Officers, GPO
J. Technical Support Contractor, non-Agency staff providing technical support to OPS-IT
K. U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, HHS, the Department
L. Webmaster: OPS-IT staff member, or OPS-IT contractor so designated
M. Web page: the entirety of a WWW document that can be viewed without further navigational maneuvers except the use of scrollbars, found under one Universal Resource Locator (URL) or web address. The Department recommends that the size of the average high-level web page allows a reasonable page load/response time.
N. Web site: the collection of web pages organized and so designated by an entity, such as a person, organization, or commercial enterprise.
O. Website Editor: staff position with OC/OA.

III. Scope

This policy applies to all SAMHSA components and Contractors providing public information via the official SAMHSA website. While the Agency recognizes the use of the internet for many other functions besides dissemination of public information, this policy is limited to the Agency's public presence on the "World Wide Web."

Because internet security is a broad-based and complex topic, this agency policy does not include significant guidelines on that subject. SAMHSA is in the process of developing a separate policy on internet security, which will be used as the basis for security considerations for all website activity, including the Agency's public presence on the Web.

IV. Guiding Principles

The SAMHSA presence on the World Wide Web should be seen by substance abuse prevention, addiction treatment, and mental health service professionals and other interested audiences as the authoritative source for government information on substance abuse and mental health services. Therefore, the following principles will guide the development and implementation of SAMHSA website contents: 

A. Credibility: Government Project Officers are responsible for ensuring that content of web pages within their scope of responsibility have received appropriate agency review and approval, that materials are current and maintained, and that links to non-governmental web sites are appropriate and maintained. 

B. Access: Material must be presented in a format that is consistent with HHS policy on accessibility of web-based information. Internet addresses should be customer friendly and accurately represent the source of information. Information should be organized in a way that is easy to use, as determined by the target audience when possible.
C. Sensitivity: People with mental illness or in recovery are often discriminated against because of social stigmatization. Scrupulous observation of privacy standards is critical to ensuring a safe and secure environment for all web users.
D. Maximize Financial Resources: All web projects must be reviewed by and coordinated with the Office of Program Services - Information Technology to eliminate the potential for waste and duplication. 
E. Organizational Unity: The purpose of materials posted on the web is to support the Agency's program priorities and to provide assistance in carrying out the Agency's mission. At the same time the Agency has a no less important responsibility to cooperate in department-wide programs, to support HHS policies and priorities, and to conform with standards, procedures, and practices established by the Office of the Secretary.

V. Authorized SAMHSA Web Sites

A. SAMHSA programs can post materials on the Agency's one official website, at www.samhsa.gov. It is managed collaboratively by SAMHSA's Office of Communications and Division of Information Resources Management.


B. The agency has one primary website name, www.samhsa.gov. 
· 1. Agency organizational units can request third-level domain names, that is, website addresses that use their names or other identifying words in conjunction with "samhsa.gov." Examples include cmhs.samhsa.gov, methadone.samhsa.gov, managedcare.samhsa.gov. Third-level domain names require OC and OPS-IT approval. 

· 2. In addition, SAMHSA may request second-level domain names from HHS. Examples of second-level domain names include drugfreeworkplace.gov, soyunica.gov, and girlpower.gov. 

· a. Second-level domain names require OC and OPS-IT approval. 

· b. An HHS Department waiver is also required. HHS-IRM-2000-0008, HHS Policy on Domain Names requires that second-level domain names be justifiable and reflect favorably on HHS and its agencies. 

C. SAMHSA's website is supported by OPS-IT designated computers (servers). The agency may use other website servers to accommodate SAMHSA information collections with exceptional requirements (for example, size or security) that would otherwise significantly overwhelm the resources of the SAMHSA website. These servers may be identified by the Agency URL, such as http://findtreatment.samhsa.gov/ (SAMHSA Locator system) or they may be located under a different URL, such as http://www.icpsr.umich.edu/SAMHDA/ (the archival databases of the Office of Applied Studies).


D. The SAMHSA web presence reflect the following operating organization:

· 1. Samhsa.gov houses: 

· a. Organizational information, such as introductions and navigational aids (including links) to Centers and Offices, agency clearinghouses, and program homepages; 

· b. Agency-wide information items, such as news releases, grants and contracts announcements, budget information, and special program emphases; 

· c. Agency program information, as mandated by regulation or determined by Agency budget and policy; and 

· d. Cross-cutting projects such as the Spending Estimates and Service Locator System. 

· 2. Health.org and mentalhealth.org serve as clearinghouses that help to disseminate print information on behalf of SAMHSA and its Centers, as well as other Federal entities, such as HHS, the National Institute on Drug Abuse, the National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism, Office of National Drug Control Policy, etc. 

· 3. After this policy becomes agency operating procedure: 

· a. SAMHSA's program and public education information that currently reside on "dot-com" and "dot-org" websites will be migrated to samhsa.gov. There will be no further authorization of off-site web pages after this time, except as specified in Items V, C and D above. 

· b. New program and public education pages will be put on samhsa.gov. 

· c. The Agency will only promote websites with a ".gov" domain name. Domain names ending in .org, .com, or .net are not acceptable for publicly available SAMHSA websites. 

· 4. The overall web presence should not duplicate information, but should link, as appropriate, to provide full information about the agency, its programs, and related topics. 

E. SAMHSA is not responsible for any part of websites developed with SAMHSA funds from grants and cooperative agreements. However, the Agency requests that websites developed through SAMHSA grant funding include two items:

· 1. An acknowledgment of the funding. 

· 2. A disclaimer that the material on the website is not necessarily endorsed by SAMHSA or the Federal Government. 

F. OC/OA is responsible for ensuring that all official agency information is accurate, current, and consistent throughout all web pages that SAMHSA sponsors. 

VI. Technical Oversight 

A. The following Agency officials have management responsibility for the technical operations of the SAMHSA website: 

· 1. The Director of OPS-IT manages SAMHSA's internet activities, including its presence on the World Wide Web. 

· a. The OPS-IT Director is responsible for implementing policies established for management of Federal information technology (IT), including cost oversight and delivery of services to the public. 

· b. The OPS-IT Director is responsible for ensuring that website staff members have the technical expertise necessary to successfully supervise and control the agency web presence. 

· 2. The SAMHSA Webmaster is a OPS-IT staff member and oversees the work of OPS-IT staff members and contractors who provide technical support for the SAMHSA web system. 

· 3. SAMHSA program staffs that sponsor pages within the Agency web presence are responsible for seeing that the technical specifications set by OPS-IT are met. When the work is accomplished by contract, POs/GPOs assure that contractors meet the technical performance specifications outlined in contracts or in technical consultation with the Webmaster. 

· a. The OPS-IT staff provides technical advise to program staff in this function. 

· b. GPOs provide liaison between contractors and the SAMHSA Webmaster. Because it is essential that the GPO remain actively involved to see that the project remains on task and within specified time and financial limits, all correspondence with the SAMHSA Webmaster (including program website updates) must come through the GPO or a staff person acting on behalf of the GPO. 

· c. The GPOs ongoing involvement also ensures that programs can make an efficient transition of the contracted products to the authorized website at the appropriate time. 

B. The OPS-IT Director is charged with fiscal responsibility for Agency IRM activities.

· 1. Because OPS-IT is responsible for maximizing the use of Agency-owned IT resources, the Webmaster's first priority will be to house all contents on SAMHSA web servers, including contents developed by contractors. 

· a. The Webmaster gives Contractors access to the SAMHSA non-production server for the purpose of posting program contents for review. 

· b. As reflected in Item V, C, the Webmaster may determine that a proposed project may unduly burden the Agency computer resources. OPS-IT may permit programs to make special arrangements with contractors for placing such projects off-site. The Director of OPS-IT must approve the technical performance standards that are used to assess the contractors' performance of these tasks. 

· 2. OPS-IT is charged with upgrades in software and hardware as part of its mission to make IT resources available to program officials. OPS-IT considers requests for upgrades in the context of Agency IT plans. If OPS-IT cannot accommodate a request from a program official, it works with that official to establish an alternative resource for the program. 

· 3. The Webmaster works with program officials and contractor representatives to assure that the SAMHSA website has the appropriate hardware and software necessary for proposed uses. Program officials should contact the Webmaster as soon as a new web project is proposed that may require the addition of new hardware and/or software, so that OPS-IT may have adequate time to review and agree to the proposal and make acquisition arrangements, as necessary. Wherever possible, new projects should be developed in accordance with OPS-IT's existing technical infrastructure (see Attachment A). 

· 4. When OPS-IT agrees to upgrades in technical functions and capabilities, it assumes responsibility for providing technical support for these upgrades. 

· 5. Government Project Officers and the Contractor Technical Resources work with the Webmaster to ensure that planned development falls within the scope of the existing SAMHSA technical infrastructure, unless new technical material has been requested at the beginning of the project. 

C. The following equipment and procedures affect the technical operations of the SAMHSA website: 

· 1. The Webmaster, OPS-IT staff and Technical Support Contractor are responsible for establishing the hardware and software configurations of the web servers and for determining the timing and scope of upgrades of these systems. This responsibility applies to: 

· a. Selection of computer servers, information processing applications, browsers and browser language-coding tools, and other auxiliary hardware and software for www.samhsa.gov. 

· b. Technical approval of these same elements for other Information Technology services. 

· 2. The Webmaster publishes a list of the current configuration of software and hardware that is used on the samhsa.gov website, to ensure that it is available to all SAMHSA officials who are developing webpages. This list is included as Attachment A. 

· 3. The Webmaster and Web Editor are responsible for using indexing principles that maximize the navigation of search engines throughout the SAMHSA web presence to access all pages of the site. Because of the extent and depth of the SAMHSA online material, indexing issues are given priority consideration in development of software capabilities. 

· 4. The Webmaster and the Web Editor are responsible for seeing that the entire SAMHSA web presence is "Section 508 compliant," and that the SAMHSA site is accessible to web browsers designed to assist users with disabilities. Federal regulations require that alternative formats such as "text-only" pages are available, as necessary, to accommodate these users. 

· 5. OPS-IT maintains data on usage to assist OC/OA and programs to evaluate effectiveness of the SAMHSA website(s). 

· a. OPS-IT follows Federal Privacy regulations in the collection of usage data. In particular, the Agency does not use software that creates "persistent cookies" or that otherwise collects data about site users. It is the responsibility of the GPO, with technical assistance from the SAMHSA Webmaster, to ensure that "persistent cookies" are not used on their program websites. Yearly certification is required in accordance with HHS-IRM-2000-0009, HHS IRM Policy for Usage of Persistent Cookies. 

· b. The SAMHSA Webmaster maintains monthly usage records in the following areas:
(1) Number of users
(2) Areas of interest
(3) Path to site
(4) Path from site
(5) Use of individual pages 

· c. Usage reports are posted to an internal site made available to program areas that have pages on the sites. PO/GPO may have access to the full reports and may request reports for specific web pages.
d. OPS-IT staff is responsible for observing Federal policies on preservation of privacy in the performance of this data collection. 

· 6. OPS-IT staff and the Technical Support Contractor are responsible for installing features that ensure the security of the SAMHSA websites. OPS-IT disseminates information on limitations of content that might result from these security measures. For websites that are not hosted by OPS-IT, GPOs are responsible for ensuring that contractors provide adequate protection for SAMHSA websites, in accordance with OPS-IT security policies and guidance. OPS-IT staff and the technical support contractor assume responsibility for the security of all websites hosted by SAMHSA. 

VII. Website Contents

A. The contents of SAMHSA's World Wide Website (www.samhsa.gov) is built around the basic components of most Federal websites:

· 1. A home page. 

· 2. A site index or site map. 

· 3. A search engine. 

· 4. Prominently displayed links to associated organizations, namely: 

· a. The U.S. Department of Health & Human Services. 

· b. SAMHSA Center/Office homepages. 

· c. The SAMHSA clearinghouse websites. 

· 5. Disclaimer statements for links to non-Federal websites. 

· 6. A description (or link to a description) of the Agency's mission, organization, and programs, and links to its information products and business contacts. 

· 7. Other information required by law, such as the Freedom of Information Act. 

B. Each web page should include:

· 1. The website logo, which identified SAMHSA and spells out the name. 

· 2. A "last revised" date. 

· 3. The phrase, "SAMHSA is an Agency of the U.S. Department of Health & Human Services." 

· 4. An e-mail address, or a link to an e-mail form, to allow the user to contact a person responsible for the contents of the site. 

· 5. Link to the "Non-frames / text version" of the site. 

· 6. Link to Privacy Statement, Site Disclaimer, and information on the site's accessibility to browsers designed to assist disabled users. 

· 7. Style preferences for www.samhsa.gov, which are generated by website design, are as a means to maintained site identity and coherence. Separate pages with distinct topics and audiences may have alternative designs that complement the overall samhsa.gov design. 

C. Each Center/Office of SAMHSA has a home page that provides information on its mission and programs and provides links to its component organizational units and information products.

D. Program and project home pages and collections are highly recommended (See Section VIII for clearance procedures and Section IX for content development procedures).

· 1. Information about Agency programs and projects should be maintained within the appropriate Center on the SAMHSA site. Pages on regulatory programs and programs with significant cross-agency or inter-agency elements should be maintained on the central part of the site. 

· 2. POs/GPOs are responsible for documenting the authorization granted to release information, including statutory authority and/or agency clearances, before a new page is set up on the SAMHSA website 

· 3. Center web contacts provide POs/GPOs with SAMHSA web guidelines and directions for clearance at the beginning of the project and remain available for consultation on an ongoing basis. 

· 4. POs/GPOs are responsible for the information content of their programs' web pages. 

· a. POs/GPOs are responsible for the contents of their program's webpages. It is recommended that they check their webpages every two weeks to ensure that contents and links are current. 

· b. An e-mail address, or a link to an e-mail form, should be displayed to help the user contact a person responsible for the page(s) content. POs/GPOs are encouraged to establish Internet e-mail addresses for public use instead of using personal addresses, e.g., library@samhsa.gov rather than john_doe@samhsa.gov. 

VIII. Content Clearance

A. Clearance agents.

· 1. The editorial management of SAMHSA's website falls within the scope of the Associate Administrator for Communications and is subject to policies established for publication of Federal information. This responsibility is carried out by the Office of Communications/Office of the Administrator (OC/OA). 

· 2. Center/Office Directors delegate coordinating authority to staff member(s), who acts as liaison between Center/Office staffs and both OC/OA and OPS-IT in carrying out web projects. The Coordinators evaluate and advise Directors on projects being proposed and seek further information, as necessary, to approve and facilitate the execution of these projects. 

· 3. The OC/OA has delegated to the Web Editor responsibility for the ongoing management and evaluation of the SAMHSA website. This responsibility requires oversight of all content issues, including the clearance process, information presentation, and linkages. 

B. Clearance criteria.

· 1. Content creation is the responsibility of the program. OPS-IT and OC work with program materials that are in electronic format and that have been completed and approved by the GPO/PO and are ready for public dissemination. 

· 2. Programs developing original materials for first-time use on the SAMHSA website should refer to electronic form E-615 (SMA), "Planning and Clearance Worksheet for Electronic Publication" (see Attachment B), for concept clearance criteria. 

· 3. The Web Editor assures that the SAMHSA website presents the Agency's information in a web-appropriate format, organized: 

· a. By subject-matter topics rather than by corporate structure, unless otherwise requested. Topical organization should be the primary structural principle used on the site. 

· b. In discrete, relatively maneuverable segments that can be separated and downloaded or linked to associated pieces in a "web." 

· c. With graphics and text that provide a unified and recognizable appearance, also known as "branding." 

· d. With navigational tools that provide clear information on the site's contents and provides guidance through the site. Included are:
(1) "Tool bars" of subject-matter links.
(2) Prominently displayed links to the most frequented sections of the website and to the SAMHSA homepage.
(3) Appropriate use of text and graphics to facilitate navigation. 

C. Web material that does not need clearance:

· 1. To determine the need for content approval, POs should consider the following criteria: 
(1) Is the information new; that is, has it been previously published and, therefore, been through previous clearance?
(2) Does the information reference sensitive policy considerations?
(3) Has the PO/GPO supervisor been notified that this new content will be added to existing webpages?
(4) If the answer to the first two questions is negative and the answer to the third question is positive, the PO/GPO can decide that the material can go into website publication without further content clearance. 

· 2. The following list represents Agency information that has not been created exclusively for web-based publication and does not need concept or content clearance: 

· a. Agency products that have been cleared by SAMHSA's Office of Communications through the publication planning and clearance process (includes Form HHS-615). 

· b. Agency documents published in the Federal Register, such as grant announcements and program regulations. 

· c. Official documents of the SAMHSA Administrator, the Center/Office Directors, and other Federal officials, including public presentations (e.g., speeches), audiovisual materials, and biographical materials. 

· d. Data collections of the Office of Applied Studies. 

· e. Data systems approved by the Director of OPS-IT. 

· f. Agency news releases, fact sheets, back grounders, and other media-oriented materials, including video- and audio-streaming of news conferences and of other Agency-sponsored events. 

· g. Items from official SAMHSA outlets, such as the TIE Forum or SAMHSA News, all of which have previously been cleared. 

· h. Campaign-related web casts, web chats, and materials identified in earlier clearances. 

· i. Interagency-developed materials cleared through another government entity. 

· j. Auxiliary public education and campaign-related materials, such as proclamations, letters of congratulations, support and testimonials, and constituency contributions. 

· k. Updates of information/materials already posted on the web: Cosmetic or grammatical updates; those updating obsolete references; and those that do not make substantive, policy-relevant changes. 

· 3. For information identified in the preceding two sections (VIII,C,1 and VIII,C,2), PO/GPO should send an e-mail notification to Webmaster, with a copy to the Web Editor, that the document is cleared and ready for publication. 

D. Web material that must be cleared: 

· 1. Information not identified by Sections VIII,C,1 and VIII,C,2—that is, new information or information not cleared in some other context that includes Form HHS-615—must be approved by the Associate Administrator for Communications before it can be published on the SAMHSA website. 

· a. The PO/GPO submits a description of the proposed web pages on electronic form E-615 (SMA), "Planning and Clearance Worksheet for Electronic Publication" (see Attachment B), to the Office of Communications. This form asks for the following information:
(1) Statement of purpose
(2) Target audience
(3) Description of contents
(4) Proposed location
(5) Types and purpose of links
(6) Approval of Center/Office Director OR Center web contact. 

· b. OC reviews the developmental material and provides approval or asks for more information and determines if the material needs Departmental clearance. 

· 2. Program officials should use these web guidelines during project design so that original clearance includes all web-based activities. Program officials should consult with the Office of Communications to clarify any issues during design and development of a project as well as during clearance. 

IX. Website Content Development

A. Adding content to www.samhsa.gov:

· 1. This policy establishes two procedures for posting material on the website: one for placing new material ("Originals") and one for updating or correcting existing materials ("Updates"). The procedure for adding Originals is designed to encourage a systematic, planned approach to the development of thematic pages on one topic, usually identified as a "home page" for the topic. This procedure is not designed to expedite the posting of time-sensitive material, which should be handled as "Updates" or additions to existing pages. Programs interested in posting original program material for the first time should allow adequate time for preparation and clearance. 

· 2. To place original materials: 

· a. Program officials or their contractors develop draft web pages of approved projects with the cooperation of the SAMHSA Webmaster and SAMHSA Web Editor. The Web Editor should receive the E-615 (SMA) documentation at this point in the process. 
(1) To assure that hardware considerations and design contents are within acceptable parameters, technical specialists of the Programs or their contractors are asked to consult with OPS-IT officials before work begins.
(2) In order to assure an orderly installation of new materials contractors, PO/GPOs, and OPS-IT officials are asked to sign the Form E615 (SMA). 
(3) This initial contact with OPS-IT allows the technical specialists of the Programs or their contractors to be briefed on the mechanics of uploading new content to the SAMHSA server. 

· b. The prototype is placed on the non-production (development or "beta") testing site for review by appropriate officials, including the Webmaster, Web Editor, PO/GPO, Center web contact, and others suggested by program staff members, OPS-IT, or OC/OA. OPS-IT authorizes use of other production or "live" sites on a case-by-case basis. 

· c. Review officials are notified of the material on the beta site and are asked for comments within a time period specified by the Web Editor. As necessary, changes are reviewed within an additional specified time period. 

· d. The Web Editor notifies the Webmaster after receiving approval from all appropriate parties via electronic mail. The Webmaster posts the original content to the production site ("live") on the appropriate area of the SAMHSA web server(s) within 48 hours. 

· e. If the new material is covered by a promotion or media plan that includes a news release or other information product, OC/OA and the Center web contact work with the PO/GPO to post auxiliary notices on the website(s). 

· 3. To update existing pages: 

· a. The PO/GPO is the primary approving official for determining the nature and significance of proposed changes. 

· b. "Updates" are directed to the Webmaster, with a notification to the Web Editor. The Webmaster posts updates within 24 hours, unless technical difficulties are encountered. 

· 4. Time-sensitive original material that is limited in scope (that is, it does not require the kind of development and clearance that require a production time line; an example would be a new grant announcement) is placed in the context of a "sponsoring" webpage, either a Center or a program. 

B. Effective customer service and the credibility of SAMHSA' public-access Internet sites depend on the information's timeliness.

· 1. Information will be posted promptly to the SAMHSA site. 

· a. Time-sensitive information, such as a grant announcement or a press release, is posted within minutes, at the maximum within 24 hours of publication. 

· b. Newly developed web pages are posted within 24 hours of final approval. 

· c. Updates in existing web pages are posted within 48 hours of contact by the initiating party, unless the scope of change is significant enough that either OPS-IT or OC/OA requests a negotiated date. 

· 2. Out-of-date information must either be removed or updated promptly. On-line information should be updated if: 

· a. The outdated information is factual and easily updated in the document without distorting other content (e.g., new phone numbers). 

· b. The document is represented to users as a current resource rather than an historical artifact. On-line information should correspond to its counterpart printed material. When a publication is changed, its title page or home page should include the modification date. 

· 3. A "shelf life" system may be implemented to determine what material should be removed from the site. 

· a. All material is dated when it is posted to the "live" site. 

· b. Material may be removed from the site after one year of its publication date. Website officials will contact the program staff before any content is removed. 

· c. Material that is updated receives a new publication date. 

· d. For historical material, or for material that can be considered "current" for more than one year or that is updated more frequently than one year, the PO/GPO can make arrangement with the Web Editor and Webmaster for special handling of outdated material. 

· 4. Updates of individual web pages are the responsibility of the program contact. Programs should designate one or more persons to review on-line documents for the following factors: 

· a. Timeliness: is the information still accurate? 

· b. Adherence to existing standards and guidelines, including those that are implemented after the page is first posted. 

X. Links and External contacts

A. In keeping with the concept of the "World Wide Web," SAMHSA references material by way of links to other websites whenever possible. Programs officials with web responsibility are asked to establish if material expected to be incorporated into their projects' web pages, as well as similar and related material, exists elsewhere within the "World Wide Web." If so, they are asked to supply web addresses or other identifying information on the source of the information.

B. SAMHSA policy encourages extensive use of links among SAMHSA program/administrative pages, including "back and forth" linkage that permits multiple two-way movements within the entire SAMHSA web presence. 

C. When a program proposes to use a link from the SAMHSA site to another site, the Web Editor reviews the proposed link site and designates it as belonging to one of the following linkage categories.

· 1. Direct links: 

· a. To other SAMHSA web pages. 

· b. To other Federal websites. 

· c. To state or local government sites with programmatic information. 

· 2. Disclaimer links, which are filtered through an exit page that includes a disclaimer. Links through a disclaimer/exit page may go to commercial and non-commercial private sites that: 

· a. Do not restrict access to the information by the public, including the disabled public with accessibility limitations (in accordance with Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act); 

· b. Do not charge the user for government information; 

· c. Do not take prohibited usage data ("cookies") on the path of the user through the government information; 

· d. Do not misrepresent information generated by the Federal government; 

· e. Clearly attribute the source of information if it is from the Federal government; 

· f. Do not advertise on pages with government information; 

· g. Do not violate laws or disseminate material that is pornographic, violent, or in bad taste. 

· 3. The SAMHSA website will not link to a personal website. 

D. Programs should designate one or more persons to review links in on-line documents. Reviewers should look for the following factors: 

· a. Viability: is the link still "live"? 

· b. Accuracy: does it still link to the intended destination? 

· c. Relevance: is the link still meaningful in the context of the SAMHSA web page? 

